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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I am sorry I am

          3  corrected that there is no vote today, but this is

          4  the first meeting and the next meeting we will vote

          5  on it, and we won't have any testimony at the next

          6  meeting. If there are changes we have to make there

          7  will be testimony at the next time. I am being

          8  corrected all the time today.

          9                 This is an important bill because he

         10  delves deeper, it will provide a deeper record for

         11  us on the police calls and arrests made in domestic

         12  violence incidents.

         13                 Council Member Lopez, this is your

         14  bill. I congratulate you. Do you want to say

         15  anything about it?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, the

         17  reason why I introduced this bill is because I have

         18  grown increasingly frustrated about the information

         19  that we need in terms of hard data to be able to

         20  look into the issue of domestic violence and develop

         21  a deterrent plan, develop allocation of funding that

         22  is appropriate to help this issue be resolved and be

         23  handled adequately.

         24                 I have also grown increasingly

         25  frustrated when I see in these hearings testimony of
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          2  women who are battered over and over again, and we

          3  cannot determine and project a possible theory on

          4  how to stop this process from happening over and

          5  over again.

          6                 And the last point, I am horrified

          7  about people who have come in here to testify who

          8  indicated that they are the wife, the partners, the

          9  girlfriends of police officers who have been in a

         10  domestic violence dispute and the police officer in

         11  question has been given leeway, has not been

         12  arrested, has not been dealt with. Those cases have

         13  come through this home of ours, the cases have been

         14  reported in here, some of those cases cry in front

         15  of the eyes of the higher power. And I have not been

         16  able, since the first time that that hearing

         17  occurred, which was I believe two years and a half

         18  ago with Council Member Eldridge called for that

         19  hearing, for a particular woman who came here to

         20  testify whose husband was a high rank and file

         21  member of the Police Department, and he was able to

         22  get away with murder legally - never got arrested,

         23  never got removed from the Police Department and to

         24  this day continues to serve in the Department.

         25                 If somebody wants more information on
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          2  this particular case that I'm talking about, we can

          3  refer back to the record. The woman who was here

          4  testifying, and some of you who were sitting here

          5  were here when she came, and she has been present in

          6  many occasions in testimony that she has put forward

          7  in the past.

          8                 Then based on that, and I want to

          9  make clear that my most interested point on this is

         10  not the last issue that I spoke about it, and not in

         11  relation to police officers, members, it's in

         12  relationship of frustration, total frustration,

         13  about allocations of money in how to change this, in

         14  how to make it different, and I don't see any other

         15  way to make a difference unless we have data

         16  accumulation that gives then the construction of the

         17  theory to be able to put forward programs that make

         18  sense.

         19                 Thank you very much, Madam Chair, for

         20  entertaining this piece of legislation, and I hope

         21  that we can approve this.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         24                 We have two witnesses from the Police

         25  Department. Lucia Davis-Raiford and Susan Petito,
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          2  and I think we would like to start with you.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Good morning,

          5  Madam Chair, and members of the Committee. My name

          6  is Lucia Davis-Raiford, and I am the Director of the

          7  Domestic Violence Unit, Office of the Chief of

          8  Department.

          9                 I'd like to thank the Committee for

         10  giving me this opportunity to speak on behalf of the

         11  New York City Police Department regarding Intro.

         12  872.

         13                 As you know, our mission is to

         14  protect life and property by enforcing a law in an

         15  effective and fair manner. Nowhere is our commitment

         16  to that mission more strongly demonstrated than in

         17  the area of domestic violence.

         18                 The Police Department and this

         19  Committee share a common goal and that we're always

         20  seeking improvement in addressing domestic violence

         21  in New York City.

         22                 However, it is difficult to comment

         23  on legislation such as Intro. 872, that compels the

         24  Police Department to collect and report data above

         25  and beyond what is currently reported, when a
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          2  reading of the bill doesn't disclose legislative

          3  finding or a memorandum in support, which would

          4  explain why the data would be collected and how it

          5  would be utilized.

          6                 When a complaint of possible domestic

          7  violence comes to the attention of the Police

          8  Department, our officers are guided by the

          9  applicable patrol guide procedures. When responding

         10  to domestic violence complaints, a police officer

         11  must take a great number of factors into

         12  consideration in a short period of time, in a highly

         13  tense situation, such as were there any weapons or

         14  threatened use of weapons, the presence of or access

         15  to weapons by the offender, the extent of any

         16  injuries inflicted by the parties, and whether there

         17  are other members of the household who might be at

         18  risk, including children and the elderly.

         19                 Some of the circumstances may be

         20  communicated verbally and some may be communicated

         21  non-verbally, through the observations of the police

         22  officer.

         23                 Thus, the implication in the bill

         24  that the issue of language determines whether

         25  probable cause exists, and an arrest is made, may be
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          2  somewhat misleading.

          3                 Of course, in a City as diverse as

          4  New York, we know that there are instances where

          5  police officers responding to a call will not know

          6  the language, or the ethnicity or the culture of the

          7  parties. We also know that police officers are in a

          8  much better position to investigate an incident of

          9  any type if there is no language barrier, and the

         10  Police Department devotes significant effort to

         11  accommodate the need to communicate effectively,

         12  including training and translation services.

         13                 We also devote considerable resources

         14  to training our officers in cultural sensitivity and

         15  we work closely with community-based organizations,

         16  especially in the area of domestic violence, to

         17  become more aware of the cultural barriers that

         18  might exist, which make it more difficult to serve

         19  some of the City's communities.

         20                 With respect to the implication in

         21  the bill that a police officer responding to a

         22  domestic violence call would have to ascertain and

         23  report the race, ethnicity and language of all the

         24  parties, and members of the household involved, the

         25  concern that requiring the police officer to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  question everyone as to their ethnicity and language

          3  may inconvenience at best, or seriously offend, at

          4  worst, the very person we're trying to assist.

          5                 Domestic violence victims are under

          6  no obligation to tell the police their race or

          7  ethnicity, and we reject the notion that such

          8  information should be demanded from someone in a

          9  crisis situation.

         10                 Such a requirement could create

         11  apprehensions toward the police officer and in some

         12  cases escalate an inherently volatile situation.

         13                 In many incidents of domestic

         14  violence, a police officer must act quickly in order

         15  to prevent further injuries or aggressive acts.

         16                 Underneath potentially precarious

         17  circumstances, we believe that the effect of the

         18  bill's requirement that officers ask these

         19  questions, may have the unintended consequence of

         20  discouraging some victims of domestic violence from

         21  seeking assistance, and distracting the police from

         22  their core mission.

         23                 In addition, introducing the issue of

         24  ethnicity and language into mandatory reporting

         25  could create an issue complicating a subsequent
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          2  prosecution of domestic violence arrests by

          3  injecting a level of doubt about the validity of the

          4  arrest. Although we're constantly seeking to further

          5  our ability to address domestic violence, we're

          6  concerned that Intro. 872 places an unnecessary

          7  burden on police officers for no discernible

          8  purpose.

          9                 Moreover, 872 may have consequence of

         10  not originally contemplated during the formation of

         11  this legislative proposal. We believe that the

         12  people of New York City will be better served if our

         13  officers use their time in addressing and preventing

         14  future violence and preserving the safety of all

         15  involved.

         16                 Thank you for your consideration, and

         17  I'll be pleased to answer any questions you may

         18  have.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Council Member

         20  Oddo.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Hello. Sorry.

         22  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         23                 One question I have is, in the

         24  testimony on page two, you mentioned one of the

         25  things taken into consideration is whether there are
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          2  other members of the household who may be at risk,

          3  which is sort of related to the question I had in

          4  mind coming into the hearing, prior to reading the

          5  testimony.

          6                 There have been two recent reports

          7  issued, one in February and one in March of this

          8  year, that indicate that the leading cause of death

          9  for pregnant women is murder, and I'm wondering if

         10  the NYPD has a protocol when they go to a domestic

         11  violence situation and there is a pregnant woman

         12  involved, is a notation made of some sort? Are there

         13  specific services provided considering that the

         14  possibility, based on the statistics, that that

         15  pregnant woman may be in more jeopardy than others?

         16                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: We consider the

         17  risks of the pregnant woman based on the pregnancy

         18  and the risk of harm to two people, not necessarily

         19  because we view her pregnancy as a risk factor in

         20  homicide, but certainly a pregnant victim would be

         21  referred for medical attention.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But is there any

         23  way of -- could you go back into the data that is

         24  compiled by the Department and say, on such and such

         25  number of domestic violence incidents, that the NYPD
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          2  became involved with their percentage, a certain

          3  percentage? Can you cull that information?

          4                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: For pregnant

          5  victims?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

          7                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Currently, no, we

          8  can't.

          9                 As a matter of fact, anything that

         10  would relate to the status of the victim that is

         11  personal to her would be in notes, so we can't

         12  currently cull from a computer system. And pregnancy

         13  is not identified on any of our forms, as a way to

         14  identify victims.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.

         16                 Thank you. That's all for now, Madam

         17  Chair. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do you have

         19  anything?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you for

         21  coming to testify.

         22                 I'm a little puzzled about your

         23  testimony, and I need clarification.

         24                 How asking domestic violence victims,

         25  the ethnicity can jeopardize them? How?
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          2                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: We're concerned

          3  that the validity of arrests in a domestic violence

          4  case, not be trivialized to the extent that we give

          5  either defense bar or any other person who might

          6  actively work for batters reasons to undermine the

          7  quality of what we believe to be good arrests, based

          8  on whether or not we have probable cause that a

          9  crime was committed.

         10                 Every bit of data that we collect,

         11  every bit of information that we would give out, of

         12  course, is available to opposing counsel, the

         13  defense counsel. I'm concerned that especially in

         14  communities of colors where ethnicity is not as

         15  broad as we might think, that it would get

         16  confusing, and it would be giving people ammunition

         17  that is not necessary to moving a case forward.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But I'm not

         19  talking about communities of color when I'm talking

         20  about identifying the ethnicity. I'm talking about

         21  white people, I'm talking about blacks, I'm talking

         22  about Latinos, I'm talking about all kinds.

         23                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: That's right. And

         24  for us that's different.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What I'm
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          2  looking at is to identify patterns, patterns of

          3  violence that occurred due to the fact that cultures

          4  sometimes sustain these patterns, and it is

          5  something that we cannot deny, that cultures

          6  sometimes have value systems.

          7                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Sure.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And those value

          9  systems that have to change.

         10                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Did not change

         12  yet, but have to change, are in great deed

         13  responsible for those domestic violence that

         14  continue. And how do we, as a society, can deter,

         15  can change that, if we cannot accumulate where those

         16  patterns are happening, in order to identify

         17  possible education campaigns? How we can do that, if

         18  we don't accumulate that data?

         19                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Well, I do agree

         20  that we need to accumulate data, and I do believe

         21  that we need to use it for a positive, which is the

         22  way we do use it, for looking at what we might have

         23  done preventively when we look at results.

         24                 The thing that concerns me, however,

         25  is I'm not sure that we could look at patterns and
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          2  in particular ethnicity, or the recurrence, if you

          3  mean recidivism and repeat cases, in any particular

          4  ethnicity and determinant that's based on any

          5  particular ethnicities cultural value. Because with

          6  all due respect, I don't know the culture that

          7  doesn't have this as a value that is supported. I

          8  don't know of an ethnicity in which domestic

          9  violence is excluded based on culture. I don't know

         10  the race in which it's excluded based on the race of

         11  the party.

         12                 We would include the world in terms

         13  of how we look at patterns. Whether or not we

         14  develop a culturally appropriate response based on a

         15  community reaction either to police intervention or

         16  a community identified reaction to domestic violence

         17  or barriers to a particular community getting

         18  services that we think are available and that they

         19  may not know about, that is of value, and it is

         20  something that we're approaching and we are looking

         21  at programs, we work with community-based groups.

         22                 One of the things that we've gotten

         23  smarter about is not developing these programs in a

         24  vacuum. We've gotten smarter about listening to

         25  victims so that they can tell us what we want,
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          2  because no matter how well intended we are, we go

          3  off in these great institutional efforts and

          4  sometimes very often we miss the mark in certain

          5  ethnic groups and certain communities.

          6                 So, we've written grant proposals to

          7  establish a Citywide program so that we can hear

          8  from victims, and from victims advocacy groups,

          9  based on their cultural experience of how they

         10  experience the police, how they experience the

         11  mandatory arrest, what services might be different,

         12  how might we get information to them based on what

         13  their cultural barriers are, and we're looking

         14  forward to signing that program Citywide.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: If I tell you

         16  that the domestic violence groups that are out

         17  there, which I met extensively, to put this piece of

         18  legislation forward, collectively all of them agree

         19  that this was the only piece of legislation that

         20  they wanted me to push forward. I put many others

         21  together that I bet that you would not support any

         22  one of those, but saying that, this was the only one

         23  that across the board, every single one of the

         24  groups jump at it, asked me please push this, it's

         25  important for us to get this information. We cannot
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          2  get a hold of any of this information anywhere, and

          3  it's time for us to be able to get this information

          4  collected.

          5                 If I tell you that that is the case

          6  and they disagree with everything that you have said

          7  here, that they do want this information, that it's

          8  critical for them to get this information in order

          9  to be able to project the program, to project

         10  treatment, to project solution to this problem.

         11                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And if I tell

         13  you that independently if I pass this piece of

         14  legislation or not here, it's going to be passed,

         15  because the state has similar legislation being

         16  introduced to put this forward, and it's being,

         17  right now some pilot programs that are being used in

         18  order to improve the situation of domestic violence;

         19  what would you say to that?

         20                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Well, the

         21  collection of data is not something the Department

         22  disagrees that we should do. In fact, it's very

         23  important for us to know who is doing what to whom,

         24  when and on what basis. In order for us to do that,

         25  we, of course, have to collect data.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 What concerns me is that if data is

          3  reduced to, and perhaps I may be overdramatizing a

          4  bit, but to ethnicity of the party --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That's not my

          6  proposal. My proposal is not about that.

          7                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: I believe that the

          8  language has race, gender, ethnicity and language.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Those are

         10  informations that we need because the advocate

         11  cannot get a hold of that information in a

         12  consistent basis, in a way to be able to project in

         13  work to request money to fund this issue back.

         14  That's the reason that is there.

         15                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: All right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: This is not

         17  minimizing or trivializing this issue. I'm very,

         18  very serious about this issue, and I know that this

         19  issue had to do with a healthy and civilized

         20  society, and that is a big thing for me.

         21                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Me, too.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I know what

         23  seriousness is involved in here, and I am not after

         24  that. I'm after moving forward this issue and

         25  improving it.
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          2                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And making a

          4  society in which men and women respect each other

          5  and understand that they are equal.

          6                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Well, I certainly

          7  can't disagree with that particular motive. But I

          8  don't know of any individual group or advocacy group

          9  or advocate who has ever asked for information that

         10  we collect to which it was not provided. Not a one.

         11                 There are many who call my office and

         12  they get the information. And you know when we get

         13  that information, when they start asking for that

         14  information? Generally when it is around time to

         15  write a grant proposal for services. And it makes

         16  sense, because in order to have documentation to

         17  tell a grantor that the problem exists, and this is

         18  what we know to be the volume of the problem, that

         19  kind of data is used. We use it, we give it out

         20  freely. Not about language, however, spoken in the

         21  house, and not about the ethnic background of either

         22  the police officer, other than cultural things, race

         23  and perhaps -- because the ethnic background is such

         24  a detailed question. Some of the things that came to

         25  mind as I was reading this, if I were a black cop
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          2  responding to an African-American police officer,

          3  responding to a domestic violence call, and I opened

          4  the door and it looked to be a South Asian family, I

          5  might make the presumption that that person is

          6  either Indian, or Asian, depending on my particular

          7  level of sophistication. If the family is from

          8  Trinidad, however, I'm dealing with a cultural, a

          9  Caribbean ethnicity, a cultural background. The

         10  nuances that I see in the potential of the details

         11  of the bill are what concern me. Not whether or not

         12  we should collect data, but the extent to which we

         13  can and how it might be used to help domestic

         14  violence victims, and I do mean help.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, for once

         16  I can tell you that the domestic violence groups,

         17  which deal with communities that speak other

         18  languages than English, are the groups who ask me to

         19  include that item in there.

         20                 The reason? They need to prove

         21  clearly that the need for language understanding of

         22  the victims and the perpetrator is critical to

         23  resolve this issue, and that unless we recognize

         24  that, and unless we look into these factors, we are

         25  not going to advance our issues in this arena.
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          2                 I can tell you about a particular

          3  Latino organization that deals basically with Latino

          4  domestic violence victims --

          5                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Victims.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Victims, or

          7  perpetrators, because it's both.

          8                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: They were very

         10  big into demanding that this information was

         11  collected and be available in order for them to be

         12  able to prove the need that exists in terms of the

         13  language provision of services, in terms of why it

         14  is so critical to understand the language, because

         15  when somebody goes to intervene in an issue like

         16  this, things are said that whoever is there may

         17  understand or may not understand. Then this is from

         18  where this is coming, and nobody can deny to me that

         19  this is necessary to deal with the issue of domestic

         20  violence appropriately.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: As

         22  Chair, sometimes I have the honor of introducing

         23  people who have come to join us at our hearings, and

         24  we have a Literacy Plus, Family Literacy Program,

         25  from PS 247 in Brooklyn with us today. We've got 18
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          2  adults, and we welcome you and hope you will find

          3  this discussion interesting.

          4                 I think it's particularly relevant to

          5  you, so if you would like to stand up, we'd like to

          6  greet you.

          7                 We're now talking about domestic

          8  violence and the discussion has been also more

          9  particularly on the language that's spoken in a

         10  household and what records are kept of it.

         11                 And we also have back with us the

         12  sixth grade from the Berkely Carol School in

         13  Brooklyn. I don't know if all of you were here

         14  earlier but they were the first committee at our

         15  hearing today, and, so, welcome again.

         16                 We are joined by Council Member

         17  Rivera and Council Member Quinn.

         18                 I'd like to ask a question. Are you a

         19  commissioner?

         20                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: I am not a

         21  commissioner.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Oh, dear. All

         23  right.

         24                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Just a lonely

         25  civil service.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I'm confused by

          3  all of this discussion.

          4                 I remember a murder trial where a

          5  batterer killed his wife, and he was acquitted

          6  because he came from Asia, from China, I think,

          7  where it was said that the ethnicity and the

          8  language and the cultural tradition differed from

          9  ours and resulted in his not understanding what our

         10  laws were, something like that.

         11                 So, it seems to me it's really very

         12  important for us to understand the cultural

         13  backgrounds, especially if we're lucky enough ever

         14  to implement the kind of program you are talking

         15  about of a Citywide neighborhood program where we

         16  have community-based organizations responding to

         17  domestic violence, but we have to have that

         18  necessary step, this is a household that speaks this

         19  language, comes from this region in the world, needs

         20  a counselor or some kind of community-based

         21  organization representative, that understands that

         22  culture, a culturally-sensitive person, and also

         23  someone they can speak to. So, if you don't have

         24  that at the time of an arrest or an incident, how

         25  are we then going to find out, and how are we then
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          2  going to respond? That's one part of it.

          3                 The other part of it is, in an arrest

          4  record, you do ask the race and the sex, right?

          5                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Yes.

          6                 No, we don't ask --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I mean the

          8  police officer just writes it in? It's on the arrest

          9  form.

         10                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Yes, it's on the

         11  report. Yes. The Domestic Incident Report it is.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And the race is

         13  always so obvious?

         14                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: No, it isn't.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But they do it?

         16                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Why can't they

         18  also come as close as they possibly can to the

         19  language, that's number one. And they do have

         20  discussions with the people before they make an

         21  arrest, it would seem to me.

         22                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Certainly, I

         24  believe if there are witnesses people are around,

         25  they talk to them and they write their names down.
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          2  So, I don't understand why in that visit we can't

          3  ask or try to understand what the ethnicity is of

          4  the family?

          5                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: You're not always

          6  going to be 100 percent correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Right.

          8                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And if it's a

         10  situation that's very inflammatory, nobody is saying

         11  you have to do it. But I don't understand why in

         12  that kind of a situation you're not going to make a

         13  thorough enough investigation that you can't fill

         14  out a police report that has that?

         15                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Well, as to the

         16  first question, in terms of the Asian gentleman who

         17  was not convicted of murder, of course any

         18  prosecution is case by case and certainly jury

         19  decisions and judge's decisions are on a

         20  case-by-case basis, I doubt if it was that one

         21  reason as to why anyone would be --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Well, it was. I

         23  remember it specifically because it was a time I was

         24  quite active in cases in court.

         25                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: But our thing is,
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          2  we have to come up with enough facts to determine

          3  whether or not there is probably cause that this

          4  person committed this crime. First of all, that this

          5  crime did occur, there is probable cause to believe

          6  that this person did it.

          7                 As I read the legislation, a lot of

          8  things came to mind. Certainly my experience with

          9  the Police Department, absolutely my experience as a

         10  domestic violence survivor, absolutely as a domestic

         11  violence survivor who had to experience an

         12  interaction with police, I can assure you, the last

         13  thing I wanted anybody asking me was about culture,

         14  race, and those kinds of things.

         15                 At the time that you're interacting

         16  in a crisis situation, you're dealing with a

         17  circumstance where there is an inherent imbalance of

         18  power between the two people you're going to respond

         19  to. Coming in as an authority figure as a police

         20  officer, two generally, armed, twice their size,

         21  very often, particularly in those circumstances

         22  where language is an issue, not Spanish, most

         23  languages other than Spanish, there are more than

         24  100 of them that are spoken in New York City that

         25  we're aware of, I can imagine how difficult, and I'm
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          2  personalizing this because it's the only thing I

          3  know, how difficult it might have been for me to

          4  have to be focused on why are you asking me what

          5  race I am? Why are you worried about my ethnicity?

          6  He just tried to strangle me.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: They already

          8  noted your race.

          9                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Well, nothing is

         10  recorded at that time. There is a time when those

         11  kinds of issues in the report is filled out.

         12                 But to have to ask, and the

         13  legislation says race, gender, ethnicity and

         14  languages, mine would be easier because I'm a

         15  native-born African-American who speaks English. If

         16  you have a language barrier in the first place, to

         17  ascertain the nuances of what language you speak, if

         18  you ask the culture, think about the inherent

         19  barriers of the groups that we're talking about, I'm

         20  going to generalize a bit.

         21                 The fact of the matter is,

         22  interaction with the police may not be a positive

         23  thing from the culture that you come from in the

         24  first place.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I don't think
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          2  it is for most people.

          3                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But in order

          5  for somebody who is intervening in a situation as

          6  the one that you described, whoever that person is,

          7  if the person in question is not understanding the

          8  language in which the person is addressed, no matter

          9  what the police officer has to ask that woman or

         10  that man, who is being abused --

         11                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Of course they

         12  will always ask. They will always ask.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: -- And try to

         14  figure out how to communicate with this person.

         15                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: That's true. They

         16  do.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: If they have

         18  to, no matter what, no matter what they have to

         19  figure out from where this person comes, no matter

         20  what they have to figure out, if this is a woman or

         21  a man in order to be able to address these people,

         22  then the question that we are asking here is not to

         23  put a piece of legislation that is going to burden

         24  the person who is being hurt or injured, it's about

         25  the Police Department accumulating this information
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          2  and no matter what the Police Department has to be

          3  aware of, has to realize, has to acknowledge this

          4  information, then if no matter what that's the case,

          5  what is wrong with accumulating mandatory data

          6  collection?

          7                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: We already have

          8  mandatory accumulated data collected. What we don't

          9  collect is that fuzzy area we're talking about now

         10  in terms of ethnic origin of crime victims, nor the

         11  ethnic origin of perpetrators even. In circumstances

         12  that a police officer would respond to the home,

         13  they don't have to figure out necessarily what the

         14  language is. The one thing they have to figure out

         15  is what do I have to do to keep this environment

         16  safe? What has happened in this house -- but

         17  communication is not always verbal, in these

         18  circumstances, most of the communication that has to

         19  occur is non-verbal because there is a difference in

         20  languages. But if I come into a house and there is a

         21  woman with   bruise on her face and she is walking

         22  back and forth like this and crying, and whether or

         23  not I speak her language, and I have been called to

         24  the house on a domestic dispute, there are ways that

         25  Police Officers have been trained to have experience
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          2  in determining did a crime occur here? Certainly if

          3  I see an injury, the assumption is yes.

          4                 Do I have an apparent victim? It

          5  seems apparent to me. Do I need to negotiate in

          6  order for us to determine that? Generally the answer

          7  is no. But those non-verbal situations, the standard

          8  that the cop has to meet in any circumstance is

          9  probable cause. Did a crime occur? Not negotiating

         10  anything other than that. It seems that knowing the

         11  culture would help us, it would of course

         12  communicate any nuances that a mere physical view of

         13  the victim can tell us, and that's a lot of stuff

         14  that's possible. We, of course, can get past

         15  history, we can find out if it happened before, we

         16  can find out what perhaps the background of the

         17  batterer, it's not going to matter to the cop what

         18  culture you are from when he knocks on your door.

         19  What is going to matter is whether or not a crime

         20  has been committed and do I have to make a mandatory

         21  arrest under the circumstances.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: May I just? I

         23  don't think this bill relates only to arrests, it's

         24  incidents. That's number one.

         25                 But further beyond that, did you
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          2  answer my second question about what's the step that

          3  goes between the police report and then a

          4  coordinated community response? And how do we find

          5  out and make that culturally sensitive?

          6                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Most often in the

          7  communities that the Police Department works, we

          8  work with a cadre of domestic violence advocates and

          9  social service support groups. Even those groups are

         10  not broken down necessarily culturally.

         11                 For instance, in Brooklyn we work

         12  very closely with the Arab-American family support

         13  system. It doesn't matter to us whether that

         14  Arab-American speaks Arabic, what their ethnic,

         15  specific ethnic background is from.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But that group

         17  would be able to respond to any of those different

         18  languages.

         19                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: We hope so, as we

         20  try to be as effective.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So then how

         22  would you break it down? How do you know that it's

         23  an Arab, a group that has that overall -- I don't

         24  know the name of the group. What's the name of the

         25  group?
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          2                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Arab-American

          3  Family Support.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I mean, why are

          5  you then going to send that to Arab-American instead

          6  of to Haitian or to Southeast Asian Support Groups?

          7                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Because very often

          8  non-verbal communication can indicate this is an

          9  Arabic family, and very often, and particularly --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So where is the

         11  notation made on the incident report that this is an

         12  Arabic --

         13                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: It's not

         14  necessarily made on the incident report, and where

         15  that kind of assessment would occur is at the point

         16  the incident is reported in to the police, it goes

         17  to the Domestic Violence police officer for referral

         18  and follow-up into that home after the incident.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, your

         20  problem is not with finding out this information,

         21  your problem is saying at the moment the police

         22  respond to a call, you don't think that's the

         23  appropriate time?

         24                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: It's far more

         25  difficult at that time. Far more difficult.
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          2                 My other difficulty --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But you do then

          4  ascertain the language or ethnicity, if you can?

          5                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Broadly we try to,

          6  certainly. Broadly we try to.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But our bill in

          8  a way is eliminating a step.

          9                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: I'm not sure that

         10  it is. I'm not sure that it is. Because we don't go

         11  to the detail of really finding out if we followed

         12  it to its narrowest in trying to do the very best we

         13  can to find out the ethnicity of a person, it would

         14  go farther than I think we're capable of at this

         15  point. Far beyond we'd be capable of in a very long

         16  time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: There are

         18  general outlines, and maybe we're being, when we say

         19  ethnicity we're being too specific and we're asking

         20  -- I mean, are there general ethnic categories that

         21  --

         22                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: -- We might

         24  investigate? I don't know. But if a police officer

         25  walks into a home and sees certain pictures on the
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          2  wall in Arabic language there, not knowing the

          3  difference in the different Arabic languages knows

          4  that it's a home in which Arabic of some kind is

          5  spoken, if they write that down, then already you're

          6  almost, you're ahead on the thing.

          7                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: That's true, but

          8  right now -- if we take the circumstance that we

          9  have now, and we have a system that maybe responds

         10  certainly to I think the spirit of what we want to

         11  do, and it's not something we necessarily disagree

         12  with, except the things that we believe is going to

         13  get us in trouble that we might find offensive, the

         14  victims might find offensive, offended by us asking.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But you're

         16  taking, of all the domestic incidents, calls that

         17  are made, how many of them result in arrests?

         18                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: That number I

         19  don't have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Pardon me?

         21                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: That number I

         22  don't have.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Well, what's

         24  the percentage?

         25                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: We had about
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          2  25,000 arrests last year.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And you had how

          4  many calls?

          5                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: We had 225 reports

          6  of incidents, those are not necessarily crimes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Right, but

          8  we're saying incidents is in this bill. So, we're

          9  not necessarily only talking about crimes. I mean,

         10  these are, it says, I think, investigating -- I

         11  don't know, but it says it, it's an incident.

         12                 So, you don't have the trauma of

         13  arrest at the time in, what do you have, an eighth

         14  of the calls result in arrest, 25,000 out of

         15  200,000?

         16                 It's something I think that we'll

         17  have to consider and take into account and see if we

         18  can do something.

         19                 Do you mind -- see, the first thing

         20  we ask is whether or not the police made an arrest.

         21                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Then the next

         23  thing we ask is how many members of the family or

         24  household were arrested. We don't even ask present,

         25  which I think maybe we should, I don't know.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 Then we go into the gender, race and

          3  ethnicity of the officers and the race, ethnicity of

          4  the family and household members.

          5                 All right, we'll have to consider all

          6  of this.

          7                 You say on the report whether or not

          8  there's arrests and how many people were arrested --

          9                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: If you are looking

         10  at a domestic incident report, anything that --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I'm not. I'm

         12  just looking at our bill.

         13                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Our domestic

         14  incident report would capture the race, whether or

         15  not the person is Hispanic -- in the ethnicity

         16  category it says Hispanic or non-Hispanic, and this

         17  is a state form. Everything that's on the face of

         18  that form we can capture and do capture.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And you list

         20  whether an arrest was made?

         21                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And how many

         23  people were arrested?

         24                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So that
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          2  information is available?

          3                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And you will

          5  give it to us?

          6                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: Of course I'll

          7  check with my boss. We do collect data on all the

          8  domestic incidents.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay.

         10                 Any questions?

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 MS. DAVIS-RAIFORD: All right, thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: The next person

         15  is Alex Leader, from the National Organization for

         16  Women.

         17                 Good morning.

         18                 MS. LEADER: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Will you

         20  identify yourself for the tape.

         21                 MS. LEADER: Yes. My name is Alex

         22  Leader. I'm Executive Director of National

         23  Organization for Women, New York City Chapter.

         24                 It's our concern as a feminist,

         25  activist, advocacy organization, that the justice
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          2  system is correctly responding to crimes in the

          3  home. So obviously, we need to be able to look at as

          4  much correct information as possible, about how

          5  often arrests are occurring in each domestic

          6  violence incident, as well as information about the

          7  ethnicity and language of both the police officers,

          8  as well as the people in the home, in order for us

          9  to be determining are arrests happening with the

         10  same frequency with different ethnic groups. I think

         11  this is important information, and, you know, I will

         12  say that in response to Margarita Lopez' comments,

         13  that a woman who has come to NOW, several chapters

         14  of NOW in New York City, and has gotten support of

         15  several Chapters of NOW in New York City in Court

         16  Watch, that as an African-American woman who is

         17  experiencing domestic violence at the hands of her

         18  husband who is an NYPD officer, that she is not

         19  getting protection and neither are her children. So,

         20  we do have reason to believe that in the case of not

         21  only certain ethnicities of women, but also in the

         22  case where women are married to police officers,

         23  that they're not receiving adequate protection and

         24  justice under the justice system. And that's from

         25  our direct experience.
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          2                 I'd like to just broaden this a

          3  little bit to just comment on recent events in New

          4  York City, that it's a known fact that in Central

          5  Park last summer over 50 women came forward to

          6  report that they had been attacked during the Puerto

          7  Rican Day Parade, and that a significant number of

          8  these women reported it, went to police for

          9  assistance, and that the police did not respond.

         10                 Many of these women who were attacked

         11  were women of color, and it appears to NOW New York

         12  City that a combination of racism and sexism

         13  appeared to have been at play that day, possibly in

         14  the fact that the police were not responding to

         15  women that that may have affected that situation.

         16                 NOW Continuously demanded that the

         17  guilty police officers, as well as the Central Park

         18  attackers be brought to justice.

         19                 The Police found that only a small

         20  group of officers were guilty of not responding to

         21  women that day initially, this was their initial

         22  assessment. NOW continued to demand that further

         23  investigation occur. The police official from

         24  response was that the investigation was completed.

         25                 NOW continued to bring to the
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          2  attention of the press that we did not believe the

          3  police had been brought to justice, and in the few

          4  days following the completion of the recent files of

          5  several of the attackers, all of a sudden the police

          6  admitted that several more officers had not

          7  correctly responded to women that day.

          8                 National Organization for Women

          9  believes that it shouldn't require continued

         10  activist pressure in order to bring to justice

         11  officers who failed to respond to women, women of

         12  all races.

         13                 We believe that data collection on

         14  how many arrests occur when police are called to a

         15  scene will put systemic, systemic pressure in the

         16  direction of ensuring that actual aggressors are

         17  arrested and punished.

         18                 The reason why I bring up the

         19  incidents of the Central Park attacks is that not

         20  only are they well known, and not only were many of

         21  the women women of color and the aggressors men of

         22  color, but we believe that the police may not have

         23  responded for that reason.

         24                 But also, the attacks were very

         25  public attacks, and if the police did not respond in
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          2  very public situations, we have sincere doubt that

          3  they will respond in more private situations, which

          4  are domestic violence incidences.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you for

          7  coming to testify.

          8                 Is your opinion that collecting

          9  information as the one that Intro. 872 put in place

         10  in regard to ethnicity, in regard to language, would

         11  jeopardize, scare, make a victim not be able to

         12  respond to an approach from the police? Make them

         13  more vulnerable to the situation that already is

         14  happening? Do you believe that that is the case?

         15                 MS. LEADER: Yes, I believe that, you

         16  know, as a feminist advocate and as a community

         17  activist, that the police are already making

         18  judgments about the ethnicity of people that they're

         19  going to arrest or interview and that it can only

         20  help a situation to have accurate data so that we

         21  can make an analysis about when are arrests actually

         22  occurring.

         23                 I believe that police are already

         24  making judgment calls, so I think that, you know,

         25  activists, as well as the people of New York City,
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          2  deserve to be able to analyze those judgment calls,

          3  and we can't analyze them unless we have data.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, that's an

          5  interesting point.

          6                 As you know, I had many meetings with

          7  you and NOW, and many of the organizations that were

          8  involved in putting together this piece of

          9  legislation, I am extremely frustrated about the

         10  issue of domestic violence and how we continue to

         11  say that we're doing everything we can, but when it

         12  comes down to something as simple as mandatory data

         13  collection of the kind that is being reported in

         14  this bill, which will be critical for us to make

         15  sensitive decisions in hiring, in programmatic

         16  actions, in proposals that can come from the

         17  Administration or from the City Council to address

         18  this issue. This information is critical to that, to

         19  make programmatic decisions that make sense. Then in

         20  not collecting this data, the only conclusion that I

         21  can get to, and in the discussions that we have, is

         22  that this will enhance the process, making it more

         23  adequate and relevant to the way that we have to

         24  serve the communities that are affected by this

         25  issue.
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          2                 Again, I want to make clear that this

          3  is not about the Latino language, Spanish, this is

          4  about English, this is about Spanish, this is about

          5  Italian, this is about any language out there,

          6  because I understand that domestic violence is an

          7  issue that is in every culture everywhere, it

          8  doesn't matter who. But this information is critical

          9  for us, because we will be able then to allocate

         10  funding in a more appropriate manner. Do you agree

         11  with that assessment?

         12                 MS. LEADER: Yes, I do. And I thank

         13  you for having me testify today.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you. Is

         17  there anybody else who wants to testify? Anybody

         18  else have anything to say?

         19                 Thank you. This meeting is now

         20  adjourned.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 11:15 a.m.)

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            44

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 24th day of April 2001.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            45

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

